I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

A. 	 The Circuit Court Erred in Holding that Elk Run Was Not Entitled to Coverage 
Under the Canopius CGL Policy. 

1. 	 The circuit court failed to apply Consolidation Coal Co. v. Boston Old 
Colony Ins. Co. and Marlin v. Wetzel County Bd ofEduc. and held that 
Elk Run was not entitled to directly seek coverage under the Canopius 
CGL Policy. 

2. 	 The circuit court erred by holding that Section 55-8-14 of the West 
Virginia Code voided Medford Trucking's indemnity obligation to Elk 
Run and further erred by failing to apply the holding of Dalton v. 
Childress. 

3. 	 The circuit court erred by holding that the plaintiff's claim did not arise 
out of or relate to Medford's "Work or other activities" under the Hauling 
and Delivery Agreement. 

4. 	 The circuit court erred in holding the "auto" exclusion of the Canopius 
Policy applied to deny coverage to Elk Run. 

B. 	 In the Alternative, the Circuit Court Erred in Holding that Elk Run Was Not 
Entitled to Coverage Under the Automobile Liability Policies of National 
Casualty and Scottsdale. 

C. 	 The Circuit Court Erred In Granting Summary Judgment in Favor of RSUI and 
Holding that Elk Run Was Not Entitled to Coverage Under the RSUI CGL Policy. 



'. 

II. 	 STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. The Hauling and Delivery Agreement Between Elk Run and Medford. 

On October 25, 2004, Elk Run d/b/a Republic Energy ("Elk Run") and Medford 

Trucking, LLC ("Medford") entered into a Hauling and Delivery Agreement (the "Agreement") 

under which Medford would haul coal from Elk Run's Republic Energy mine to various 

destinations specified by Elk Run. [See lA001323-001380l The Agreement, which defines Elk 

Run as the "Owner" and Medford as the "Contractor," states, "[Medford] shall, during the term 

of this Agreement, haul coal from [Elk Run's] premises to various locations set forth on Exhibit 

A. All of such services are sometimes hereinafter collectively referred to as the 'Work. '" 

[lA001323].\ 	The Agreement remained in full force and effect during all times relevant. 

Section 9 of the Agreement is titled "Indemnity; Insurance." [lAOO 1331 l Subsection 

9.1 contains a broad indemnity provision whereby Medford agreed to defend and indemnify Elk 

Rlll from and against any and all claims arising out of Medford's performance of the "Work or 

other activities" under the Agreement. Subsection 9.1 states in relevant part: 

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, [Medford] shall 
indemnify, defend and save harmless [Elk Run], its members, 
affiliates . . . officers, directors, shareholders, employees and 
agents . . . from and against any and all demands, actions, suits, 
claims, rights, losses (including, but not limited to diminution in 
value), controversies, damages, costs, expenses (including, but not 
limited to, interest, fines, penalties, costs of preparation and 
investigation, and the reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys, 
accounts and other professional advisers), and any other liability of 
whatsoever kind or nature . . . whether on account of damage or 
injury (including death) to persons or property, violation of law or 
regulation, or otherwise, relating to, resulting from, arising out of, 
caused by or sustained in connection with, directly or indirectly, 
[Medford's] perforn1ance of the Work or other activities performed 
pursuant to this Agreement .... 

Through various amendments to the Agreement, the locations to which Medford was to haul coal were 
modified. However, these amendments are not material to the issues presented herein. 
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[JA001374]. 


Subsection 9.3 of the Agreement then obligates Medford to purchase and maintain 

policies of insurance for itself and Elk Run. [JA001332-001335]. This included commercial 

general liability and automobile liability insurance with minimum limits of $2,000,000 per 

occurrence. [JA001333-001334]. The Agreement provides that these insurance policies "shall 

be primary and not contributory as to any other insurance [Elk Run] may have in place." 

[JA001334]. The Agreement further provided that, with the exception of workers' compensation 

insurance, Elk Run was to be named as an "additional insured" under the policies. [JAOOI335]. 

B. 	 The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance 
Policies. 

1. The Canopius and RSUI Commercial General Liability Policies. 

Pursuant to the Agreement, Medford purchased a commercial general liability policy 

from Canopius US Insurance Inc. ("Canopius"). [See JAOOOI59-000208]. Canopius sold 

comprehensive general liability insurance Policy No. OUS035000351 (the "Canopius Policy) to 

Medford for the policy period February 3, 2011 to February 3, 2012. [JAOOOI59]. The 

Canopius Policy provided general liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

[JAOOOI71]. 

The Canopius Policy obligates Canopius to pay the sums that Medford becomes legally 

obligated to pay as damages because of "bodily injury" caused by an "occurrence." [JAOOOI80]. 

The Canopius Policy defines "bodily injury" to mean "bodily injury, sickness or disease 

sustained by any person, including death resulting from any of these at any time." [JAOOOI91]. 
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The Canopius Policy defines an "occurrence" as an "accident, including continuous or repeated 

exposure to substantially the same general harmful conditions." [JAOOOI93]? 

The Canopius Policy further obligates Canopius to pay sums that Medford becomes 

legally obligated to pay by reason of liability that Medford assumes on behalf of a third-party in 

an "insured contract." [JAOOO 181]. The Canopius Policy defines an "insured contract" as, inter 

alia: 

That part of any other contract or agreement pertaining to 
your business ... under which you assume the tort liability of 
another party to pay for "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" to a third person or organization. Tort liability 
means a liability that would be imposed by law in the 
absence of any contract or agreement. 

[JAOOO 192]. Canopius' "insured contract" coverage includes the obligation to defend or pay the 

defense costs of Medford's indemnitee when such costs and expenses are also assumed in the 

"insured contract." [JAOOOI81]. An example ofthis is the indemnity provision in subsection 9.1 

of the Agreement, which includes the "costs of preparation and investigation" and "the 

reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys." [JAOOI374]. 

The Canopius Policy also contains a separate, stand-alone "Blanket Additional Insured 

Endorsement." [JAOOOI78]. This endorsement requires Canopius to afford "additional insured" 

status tmder the Canopius Policy to third-parties for which Medford is obligated to add as an 

additional insured under a written contract between Medford and the third-party. [JAOOOI78]. 

The third-party is only an additional insured for liability "caused, in whole or in part, by 

[Medford's] acts or omissions" or "the acts or omissions of those acting on [Medford's] behalf." 

[JA000178]. In addition, the endorsement states that it does not provide coverage for '''bodily 

injury' ... arising out of the sole negligence of the additional insured." [JA000178]. 

There is no dispute that the claims of the plaintiff below involved "bodily injury" resulting from an 
"occurrence" and/or an "accident" as defmed by the insurance policies at issue. 
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As a general liability policy, the Canopius Policy contains the standard auto exclusion. It 

excludes coverage for '''bodily injury' or 'property damage' arising out of, caused by or 

contributed to by the ownership, non-ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others of 

any ... 'auto' ... Use includes operation and 'loading and unloading. '" [JA000172]. 

The Canopius Policy defines the term "auto," which is as follows: 


"Auto" means: 


a. 	 A land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer designed for 
travel on public roads, including any attached 
machinery or equipment; or 

b. 	 Any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory 
or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle 
insurance law in the state where it is licensed or 
principally garaged. 

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equipment." 

[JA000191]. In turn, "mobile equipment" is defined as, inter alia, the following: 

"Mobile equipment" means any of the following types of land 
vehicles, including any attached machinery or equipment: 

a. 	 Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other vehicles 
designed for use principally off public roads; 

*** 
However, "mobile equipment" does not include any land 
vehicles that are subject to a compulsory or financial 
responsibility law or other motor vehicle insurance law in 
the state where it is licensed or principally garaged. Land 
vehicles subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility 
law or other motor vehicle insurance law are considered 
"autos." 

[JAOOO 192-000 193]. 

Since the use of an "auto" includes "loading and unloading" under the Canopius Policy, 

there is a specific definition for it, which is as follows: 
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"Loading or unloading" means the handling of property: 

a. 	 After it is moved from the place where it is accepted 
for movement into or onto an aircraft, watercraft, or 
"auto"; 

b. 	 While it is in or on an aircraft, watercraft or "auto"; or 

c. 	 While it is being moved from an aircraft, watercraft or 
"auto" to the place where it is finally delivered; 

But "loading or unloading" does not include the movement of 
property by means of a mechanical device, other than a hand truck, 
that is not attached to the aircraft, watercraft or "auto." 

[JA000192]. 

Above the Canopius Policy, RSUI Indemnity Company ("RSUI") issued a Commercial 

Excess Liability Policy, Policy No. NHA055540 (the "RSUI Policy"), effective from February 3, 

2011 to February 3, 2012. [JAOOI065-001083]. The RSUI Policy provided an additional 

$1,000,000 in commercial general liability coverage over and above the Canopius Policy. 

[JAOOI066]. The RSUI Policy was "following form" of the Canopius Policy in that, unless 

specified otherwise, the RSUI Policy incorporated the same terms and conditions of the 

underlying Canopius Policy. 

2. The National Casualty and Scottsdale Automobile Liability Policies. 

In addition to the commercial general liability policies of Canopius and RSUI, pursuant 

to the Agreement, Medford purchased a commercial auto liability policy from National Casualty 

Company ("National Casualty"). [JAOOI101-001229]. Policy No. OP00035273 (the "National 

Casualty Policy") was for the policy period of April 7, 2011 to April 7, 2012 and provided 

coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence. [JAOOII01,001108]. 

As an auto liability policy, the National Casualty Policy provides the mirror opposite 

coverage of a general liability policy. Whereas a general liability policy excludes dan1ages 
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resulting from the ownership, maintenance or use of an "auto," the National Casualty Policy 

provides coverage for '''bodily injury' or 'property damage' caused by an "accident" and 

resulting from the ownership, maintenance or use of a covered 'auto.'" [JA001172]. The 

National Casualty Policy contains the same definitions of the terms "auto" and "mobile 

equipment" as does the Canopius Policy. [JAOOl182,001183-001184]. 

Similarly, the Canopius Policy's definition of "loading or unloading" of an "auto" does 

not include, and therefore it provides coverage for, the "movement of property by mechanical 

device." In contrast, the National Casualty Policy provides coverage for the "loading and 

unloading" of an "auto," but does not provide coverage for bodily injury or property dan1age 

"resulting from the movement of property by a mechanical device (other than a hand truck) 

unless the device is attached to the covered 'auto.'" [JAOOI175]. 

The National Casualty Policy also provided coverage for those sums that Medford 

becomes legally obligated to pay by reason of liability that Medford assumes on behalf of a 

third-party in an "insured contract." [JA001174]. The National Casualty Policy contains the 

same standard definition of an "insured contract" as is found in the Canopius Policy. 

[JA001183]. In addition to the "insured contract" coverage, as required under the Agreement, 

Elk Run was also designated as an insured under the National Casualty Policy. [JAOOl196]. 

Above the National Casualty Policy, Scottsdale Insurance Company ("Scottsdale") 

issued an excess auto liability policy. [JA002077-002093]. Policy No. XLS0058690 (the 

"Scottsdale Policy") was effective from April 7, 2011 to April 7, 2012 and provided an 

additional $1,000,000 in auto liability coverage over and above the National Casualty Policy. 

[JA002077, 002083]. The Scottsdale Policy was "following form" of the National Casualty 
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Policy in that, unless specified otherwise, the Scottsdale Policy incorporated the same terms and 

conditions of the underlying National Casualty Policy. 

C. The Underlying Action and Elk Run's Third-Party Complaint. 

1. The Plaintiff's Claims. 

The plaintiff below, Timothy Walker, was employed as a coal truck driver for Medford. 

[JA000028]. On October 3, 2011, the plaintiff filed this action against Elk Run and its 

employee, Eric Scott Redden, alleging that he suffered personal injuries while performing 

services at the Republic Energy mine on May 31,2011. [See JA000027-000033].3 Specifically, 

Mr. Redden was using a front-end loader to load coal into the Medford truck that Mr. Walker 

was driving. [JA000028]. During this process, Mr. Redden allegedly lost consciousness due to a 

combination of medication and dehydration, causing the front-end loader to strike and flip the 

Medford truck with Mr. Walker inside. [JA000028]. 

2. The Insurance Coverage Dispute. 

On November 1, 2011, pursuant to the Agreement, Elk Run requested in writing that 

Medford and its insurance carriers provide a defense and indemnity to Elk Run for the plaintiff s 

claims. [JA000654-000655]. 

On December 29, 2011, the automobile liability insurer, National Casualty, denied 

coverage. [JAOOI425]. National Casualty asserted that the plaintiffs claim did not result from 

the use of a covered "auto." [JAOOI429]. As opposed to the claim resulting from the "loading 

and unloading" and therefore "use" of an "auto," National Casualty took the position that the 

plaintiffs accident was the result of the movement of property by mechanical device, which the 

The original Complaint was filed on October 3, 2011. Mr. Redden was not a party to the original 
Complaint, but was named as a defendant in the Amended Complaint filed on October 9, 2012. 
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National Casualty Policy excludes. [JA001429]. National Casualty advised Elk Run that it 

should seek coverage under Medford's commercial general liability policy. [JA001429]. 

While the automobile liability insurer, National Casualty, pointed the finger at the 

commercial general liability insurer, Canopius, as having the coverage obligation, Canopius 

pointed straight back at National Casualty. With respect to the "insured contract" coverage, 

Canopius took the position that the claim did arise out of the use of an "auto" and, as a result, no 

"insured contract" coverage was available under the Canopius Policy with respect to Medford's 

indemnity obligation to Elk Run. [JA000657-000658, 000686, 001029-001031].4 

Canopius did initially accept coverage for Elk Run under the separate "Blanket 

Additional Insured Endorsement." [JA000657]. However, Canopius subsequently denied 

coverage on this ground as well. [JA000672-00068 I]. Canopius took the position that E.lk Run 

was not entitled to "additional insured" coverage based upon the "sole negligence" exclusion of 

the "Blanket Additional Insured Endorsement" of the Canopius Policy. [JA000672-000681]. 

On February 7, 2013, in preparation for an upcoming mediation, the plaintiff made a 

settlement demand upon Elk Run, which Elk Run in tum passed along to Canopius. [JA000683

000684]. On April 1,2013, Canopius reiterated its previous denial of coverage and stated that it 

"[would] not be making any offer in response to Plaintiffs demand." [JA000686]. 

The plaintiff, Mr. Walker, was an employee of Medford. A commercial general liability policy, such as the 
Canopius Policy, typically excludes coverage for "bodily injury" to an "employee" of the insured. [JA000181]. 
However, this employer's liability exclusion "does not apply to liability assumed by the insured under an 'insured 
contract. '" [JAOOO 181]. In other words, had the plaintiff himself asserted a direct claim against Medford for his 
injuries, the Canopius Policy would not provide coverage. However, when the plaintiff seeks damages from a third
party such as Elk Run whose liability Medford had assumed in an "insured contract," then the employer's liability 
exclusion does not apply. Based upon the employers' liability exclusion, Canopius denied any coverage for 
Medford with respect to any direct claim that the plaintiff may have asserted against Medford, but no such direct 
claim was ever pursued by the plaintiff. [JAOO1031-001032]. With respect to Canopius' denial of "insured 
contract" coverage for Medford's indemnity obligation to Elk Run, Canopius could not and did not assert the 
employers' liability exclusion. Instead, Canopius relied solely upon the "auto" exclusion in the Canopius Policy. 
[JA000686, 00 I 029-00 1 031]. 
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With National Casualty denying coverage and arguing that coverage should be under the 

commercial general liability policy of Canopius and Canopius, in tum, arguing that coverage 

should be under the auto liability policy of National Casualty, Elk Run was left stuck in the 

middle. As a result, on May 16,2013, Elk Run filed its Amended Third-Party Complaint against 

Canopius, RSUI, National Casualty, and Scottsdale. [JA000075-000095].5 In its Amended 

Third-Party Complaint, Elk Run sought a declaration that the commercial general liability 

policies of Canopius and RSUI provided coverage for the plaintiff s claims or, in the alternative, 

that coverage was owed under the auto liability policies of National Casualty and Scottsdale. 

[JA000075-000090]. Elk Run also asserted claims against Canopius for breach of the duty of 

good faith and fair dealing and for violations of the West Virginia Unfair Trade Practices Act. 

[JA000090-000095]. 

3. 	 The Circuit Court's Granting of Summary Judgment In Favor of 
Canopius, RSUI, National Casualty, and Scottsdale. 

On January 27, 2014, Elk Run moved for partial summary judgment against Canopius. 

On January 31, 2014, Canopius filed a motion for summary judgment against Elk Run. On 

February 11, 2014, RSUI moved for summary judgment against Elk Run. On March 5, 2014, 

National Casualty and Scottsdale moved for summary judgment against Elk Run. On April 8, 

2014, Elk Run filed a motion for summary judgment against National Casualty. 

On or around April 2, 2014, Elk Run reached a mutually agreeable settlement with the 

plaintiff, which resulted in a final resolution and dismissal of the plaintiffs claims against Elk 

Run and Mr. Redden. [JA002475-002478]. As none of the insurers contributed to Elk Run's 

Elk Run also asserted a third-party claim against Dr. Yasar J. Askoy seeking contribution with respect to 
the plaintiff's claims. Elk Run alleged that Dr. Askoy was negligent in certifying that Mr. Redden was able to work 
and operate heavy machinery despite the amounts and combinations of prescription medications that Dr. Askoy had 
prescribed to Mr. Redden. [JA000076-000079]. 
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settlement with the plaintiff, the settlement had no effect upon Elk Run's third-party claims 

against Canopius, RSUI, National Casualty, or Scottsdale. 

On May 28, 2014, the circuit court entered four orders granting summary judgment in 

favor of Canopius, RSUI, National Casualty, and Scottsdale and dismissing Elk Run's Amended 

Third-Party Complaint with prejudice. [JA002429-002474].6 

In Section 9 of its Notice of Appeal, Elk Run stated that there had yet to be a final decision on the merits as 
to all issues and all parties in the litigation. Specifically, on May 9, 2014, the plaintiff below filed his Second 
Amended Complaint for Declaratory Relief against American Mining Insurance Company ("American Mining"). 
American Mining was the workers' compensation insurer for the plaintiffs employer, Medford. The sole issue with 
respect to the plaintiffs Second Amended Complaint for Declaratory Relief was whether American Mining had a 
valid workers' compensation subrogation lien against the plaintiffs settlement monies pursuant to Section 23-2A-l 
of the West Virginia Code and, if so, the amount. This issue did not involve and was completely independent of Elk 
Run, Canopius, RSUI, National Casualty, and Scottsdale. Thus, the circuit court's summary judgment orders of 
May 28, 2014 were, in nature and effect, fmal orders because they fully and completely disposed of any and all 
issues involving Elk Run, Canopius, RSUI, National Casualty, and Scottsdale. Since the filing of the Notice of 
Appeal on June 26, 2014, the plaintiff's claim against American Mining has also been dismissed. [JA002479
002480]. 
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III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

With respect to insurance coverage for the plaintiff, Mr. Walker's, claim, there are two

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