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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Circuit Court correctly found that insurance policies issued to Medford by Canopius and 

RSUI did not provide coverage for the claims being asserted against Elk Run. In particular, the 

Circuit Court was correct in finding that Walker's claims against Elk Run did not arise out of or 

relate to Medford's "Work", as required for indemnification under the Hauling Agreement between 

Medford and Elk Run. Specifically, it is undisputed that Redden, an Elk Run employee, directed 

the claimant where to park the Medford truck. Further, it is undisputed that Redden was using an Elk 

Run front end loader to load coal into the truck and that Medford and its employees had no control 

over that process. In fact, Elk Run stipulated that Walker, the only Medford employee involved, was 

not comparatively negligent. Therefore, there was no genuine question offact regarding whether the 

claims arose from Medford's "Work." 

The Circuit Court also properly found that the public policy of West Virginia does not 

support Elk Run's attempt to obtain indemnification from Medford under the Hauling Agreement 

for Elk Run's sole negligence. In the absence of any evidence that Medford or its employee were 
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at fault, Elk Run was the only party that could be found to be at fault. Likewise, the Circuit Court 

properly found that Elk Run was not entitled to merge the Insuring Agreement of the Canopius 

Policy with the Insured Contract provision in an effort to modify the definition ofwho is an insured 

under either the Canopius Policy or the RSUI umbrella Policy. The Circuit Court also correctly 

found that the Auto Exclusion of the Canopius Policy applied to exclude coverage to Elk Run for 

Walker's claims since it is undisputed that the claims involved the use of a motor vehicle. Finally, 

the Circuit Court correctly found that the exclusions and limitations in the Canopius Policy applied 

to exclude coverage under the RSUI Policy and correctly applied the Employer Liability Exclusion 

found in the RSUI Policy. Such exclusions have been found to be valid in West Virginia and RSUI 

properly brought that exclusion to the attention of its insured. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

These Respondents represent that oral argument is unnecessary pursuant to the criteria 

contained in Rules 18 and 19 ofthe Rules ofAppellate Procedure for the Supreme Court ofAppeals 

of West Virginia, because the case involves assignments of error in the application of settled law, 

and because the case presents claims involving only a narrow issue of law. 

ARGUMENT 

A. Standard of Review. 

Elk Run appeals the four orders issued by the Circuit Court granting summary judgment in 

favor of Canopius, RSUI, National Casualty, and Scottsdale, and denying Elk Run's motions for 

summary judgment. Under settled West Virginia law, these orders are subject to de novo review. 

Painter v. Peavy, 192 W.Va. 189, 451 S.E.2d 755 (1994) ("A circuit court's entry of summary 

judgment is reviewed de novo."); see also, Findleyv. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., 213 W.Va. 80, 
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576 S.E.2d 807 (2002) ("Thjs Court reviews de novo the denial ofa motion for summary judgment, 

where such a ruling is properly reviewable by this Court."). 

While the standard of review is de novo, when this Court reviews a decision of the Circuit 

Court to grant summary judgment, it does so under the same standards that the Circuit Court applied 

to determine whether summary judgment was appropriate. Williams v. Precision Coil, Inc., 194 

W.Va. 52,59,459 S.E.2d 329,335 (1995). The interpretation of an insurance contract, including 

the question of whether the contract is ambiguous, is a legal determination which, like the court's 

summary judgment, is reviewed de novo on appeal. Payne v. Weston, 195 W.Va. 502, 507,466 

S.E.2d 161 (1995). In West Virginia, insurance policies are controlled by the rules ofconstruction 

applicable to contracts. Payne v. Weston, 195 W.Va. 507. Thus, it is well-settled that, when 

reviewing an insurance policy, the Supreme Court "will apply, and not interpret, the plain meaning 

ofan insurance contract in the absence ofambiguity or some other compelling reason" and the Court 

will read the policy's terms "to avoid ambiguities and not torture the language to create them." 

Payne v. Weston, 195 W.Va. 507. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court properly held that Petitioner Elk Run was not entitled to coverage 
under the Canopius CGL Policy for Walker's claims asserted against Elk Run. 

1. 	 The Circuit Court properly held that Walker's claim did not arise out of or 
relate to Medford's "Work", as required for indemnification under the Hauling 
Agreement. 

In its Legal Argument Point V.BA. (Brief of Petitioner, p.25-27), Elk Run argues that the 

Circuit Court erred by holding that Walker's claims did not arise out ofor relate to Medford's "Work 

or other activities" under the Hauling Agreement and that Medford's indemnity obligation under 

subsection 9.1 ofthe Agreement was not triggered. Such an argument is erroneous, not only because 
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it misstates the undisputed pertinent facts, but because it relies upon legal authority that is not 

controlling. Indeed, two of the three cases cited by Elk Run are not governed by the law of West 

Virginia, but rather the law ofAlabama and Louisiana and, in any event, they, along with the third 

case, are not helpful to Elk Run's position. 

Specifically, Elk Run argues that the Walker claim arises out ·of and relates to Medford's 

"Work" because the accident occurred during the placement ofcoal in the Medford truck .. Elk Run 

argues that the accident "arises out of' the performance ofMedford's work because loading ofcoal 

was anecessary part ofMedford's work and that in order to haul coal, it first needs to be loaded in 

the truck. The Circuit Court correctly found, however, that under the Hauling Agreement, Medford's 

"Work" only included hauling, not loading. Consequently, the Circuit Court properly found that the 

indemnification obligation was not triggered. [JA002455-JA002457]. 

Elk Run's objection to the Circuit Court distinguishing between the loading of coal on the 

truck, which was being performed by Elk Run's Redden at the time ofthe accident, and the hauling 

of coal by Medford, which did not occur, is baseless. A review of the terms of the Hauling 

Agreement confirms that to trigger the indenmification obligation under the Agreement, the "Work ,. 

of hauling must be performed by Medford. [JA001366]. Elk Run's argument that the scope of the 

"Work" must include loading, merely because it must occur first before Medford can haul the coal 

is not just contrary to the terms ofthe Agreement, but implausible. Indeed, as the Circuit Court held, 

Elk Run's argument is akin to the absurd argument that Elk Run would be entitled to indemnification 

for injuries and damages which occur during the course ofmining ofthe coal, since there would be 

no coal for Medford Trucking to haul if the coal were not first mined. [JA 2457] 
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In support of its argument, Elk Run cites the cases of Twin City Fire Ins. Co., Inc. v. Ohio 

Cas. Ins. Co., Inc., 480 F.3d 1254 (11 til Cir. 2007), Norfolk Southern R.R. v. Nat'l Union Fire Ins. 

ofPittsburgh, PA, 999 F.Supp.2d 906 (S.D. W.Va. 2014), and Perkins v. Rubicon, Inc., 563 So.2d 

258 (La. 1990). Elk Run's argument is that Walker's mere presence at the time ofthe accident, even 

though at the time he was not performing "Work" under the Hauling Agreement, should be sufficient 

to show that his injuries arose out ofMedford's "Work" under the Hauling Agreement. However, 

a review of these cases establishes that they do not support Elk Run's position. 

First, two of the cases are not controlling because they are not governed by West Virginia 

law. Twin City Fire Ins. Co., Inc. v. Ohio Cas. Ins. Co., Inc., 480 F.3d 1254 (11 til Cir. 2007), is 

governed by Alabama law and Perkins v. Rubicon, Inc., 563 So.2d 258 (La. 1990), is governed by 

Louisiana law. Second, and more significant, in each instance, in their indemnity agreement, the 

parties specified that the indemnitee would be indemnified against the consequences of its own 

negligence. Third, in each of the cases, it is clear that unlike West Virginia, the out-of-state public 

policy is to enforce an attempt by an indemnitee to obtain indemnification for its own sole 

negligence, provided the parties explicitly provide for such indemnification. Finally, in each case, 

the injured party was performing work that was contemplated by the agreement at issue. 

For example, in the case ofTwin City Fire Ins. Co., Inc. v. Ohio Cas. Ins. Co., Inc., 480 F.3d 

1254 (11 th Cir. 2007), G. A. West & Co. ("West") agreed to supply labor to Alabama River Pulp Co. 

("ARP"). The contract between the parties provided, in part: "To the fullest extent permitted by law, 

[West] shall indemnify and hold harmless ARP... from and against any and all claims, costs, losses 

and damages ... arising out ofor in any way related to the performance ofthe Work by [West] or the 
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agents, servants, employees or Subcontractors [of West], in whatever manner the same may be 

caused, occasioned or contributed to by the negligence, sole or concurrent, ofARP ... " Id. at 1256. 

The contract required West to obtain insurance to cover its indemnity obligation and to add 

ARP to its policies as an additional insured. At the time of the accident, ARP had a primary COL 

policy from Twin City, an excess policy from Twin City, and an umbrella policy from Hartford 

Casualty that was excess to both Twin City policies, and West had a primary COL policy from 

Amerisure and an umbrella policy from Ohio Casualty. ARP was named an additional insured on 

both the Ohio Casualty and the Amerisure policies. Id. at 1256-1257. 

Dumas and Stabler suffered burn injuries from a ruptured storage tank "during the course and 

scope oftheir employment with West." Id. at 1257. At the time ofthe accident, their work for West 

on ARP's premises brought them into the tank's vicinity. The parties agreed that ARP's actions 

caused the rupture. Id at 1257. 

Regarding the issue ofliability under the indemnity agreement, the Court ofAppeals for the 

Eleventh Circuit adopted a broad interpretation of the phrase "arising out of'. In support of this 

interpretation the Court pointed out that "the indemnity clause at issue here includes much more than 

liability that arises out of West' s [the insured's] work. It includes claims "in any way related to the 

performance" of West's work, "in whatever manner the same may be caused." Twin City Fire Ins. 

Co., Inc., 480 F.3d at 1264. 

This case is not controlling because it was decided under Alabama law which supports and 

enforces an attempt by an indemnitee to obtain indemnification for its sole negligence. Contrary to 

the instant facts, in Twin City Fire Ins. Co., Inc.: (1) the indemnification agreement explicitly 

included accidents whose "sale" cause was the negligence ofthe indemnitee, and (2) it is undisputed 
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that at the time ofthe accident, the underlying plaintiffs, employees ofWest [the indemnitor], were 

actively performing work for their employer on ARP's premises. In the instant matter, it is 

indisputable that the subject indemnification agreement does not explicitly include accidents whose 

"sole" cause is the negligence ofElk Run and, at the time ofthe incident, Walker was not performing 

its "Work" under the Hauling Agreement. The subject accident arose solely out ofthe performance 

of Elk Run's work of loading coal. 

The case ofPerkins v. Rubicon, Inc., 563 So.2d 258 (La. 1990), is also not controlling. Like 

the Alabama case, the case involves the law of a state other than West Virginia and the decision 

reflects the public policy ofLouisiana, to broadly interpret the phrase "arising out of', and to enforce 

an indemnity agreement which explicitly provides that the indemnitee is indemnified against the 

consequences of his own negligence. 

In Perkins, 563 So.2d 258 (La. 1990), B & B, a maintenance service company, entered into 

a contract with Rubicon, the owner ofan industrial plant, for B & B to provide maintenance services. 

B & B agreed to "indemnify and hold [Rubicon] harmless from all claims, suits, actions, losses and 

damages for personal injury, including death and property damage, even though caused by lhe 

negligence of [Rubicon], arising out of [B & B's] performance of the work contemplaled by lhis 

agreement." Id. at 258. 

The plaintiff, Perkins, a B & B employee, was injured when he was working inside a tank 

at the Rubicon premises. The tank was isolated for maintenance work. Plaintiff was injured when 

he inhaled gas that drifted over to his work site. Id. at 258-259. 

Perkins filed suit against Rubicon and its insurer, alleging that he was injured by the 

negligence ofRubicon's employees "while he [Perkins] was performing work for B & B at the plant 
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under the maintenance contract". Id. at 258-259. Rubicon requested that B & B defend it under the 

indemnity agreement. When B & B refused, Rubicon filed a cross-claim against B & B. 

The Court granted summary judgment for Rubicon ordering B & B to defend and indemnify 

Rubicon. The Court ofAppeals affirmed. On appeal to the Supreme Court ofLouisiana, the Court 

affirmed, holding that plaintiff's injuries arose out ofthe performance of the contract and that B & 

B was obligated to indemnify Rubicon. 

Regarding the issue ofwhether Louisiana would enforce a contract ofindemnity whereby the 

indemnitee is indemnified against his own negligence, the Supreme Court ofLouisiana stated that 

such a contract would be "strictly construed", and not enforced "unless such an intention is expressed 

in unequivocal terms". Id. at 259. The Court found that the indemnification agreement 

"unequivocally" stated that B & B would indemnify Rubicon for damages for injuries "even though 

caused by the negligence of [Rubicon]." Id 

The Court disagreed with B & B's argument that Perkins' presence and performance ofhis 

employment duties under the contract at the time of the accident were not sufficient to establish that 

his injuries arose out of B & B's performance of the contractual work. The Court explained, 

"Because the purpose ofan indemnity agreement is to allocate risks inherent in the activity between 

the parties to the contract", it was necessary to "determine whether the risk that resulted in the injury 

was one contemplated by the parties to the contract." Id The Court noted that while Rubicon 

wished to contract out its maintenance work to B & B, it did not want to assume the greater risks of 

injury that were inherent in having B & B perform the maintenance work. Id 

Thus, the Court concluded that "the parties agreed that B & B would bear the risk of injuries 

"arising out of' its performance ofthe contract" and, rather than requiring fault by B & B, the Court 
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interpreted this language as requiring a "connexity similar to that required for determining cause-in

fact: Would the particular injury have occurred but for the performance of the work under the 

contract?" Id. The Court found that a "connexity" was established "by showing that the injured 

employee was engaged in work under the contract at the time ofhis injury." Id. 

The Perkins case is not controlling, because it was decided under Louisiana law and in 

accordance with the public policy of Louisiana, which supports and enforces an attempt by an 

indemnitee to obtain indemnification for its own sole negligence and, further, because the critical 

facts differ greatly from the instant facts. Contrary to the instant facts, in Perkins,:(l) the 

indemnification agreement explicitly included accidents caused by negligence ofthe indemnitee, and 

(2) at the time ofthe accident, Perkins was actively performing work for his employer B & B under 

the maintenance contract at Rubicon's plant. Here, Elk Run's indemnification agreement does not, 

explicitly or implicitly, include accidents caused by the sole negligence ofElk Run, and at the time 

of the subject accident, Walker was not performing any work under the Hauling Agreement. Here 

Walker's accident arose solely out of the performance of Elk Run's work ofloading the coal. 

The Perkins case was distinguished by a later case, Dean v. Griffin Crane & Steel, Inc., 935 

So. 2d 186 (Ct. of Appeal of La., First Circuit 2006), in which the Court of Appeal of Louisiana, 

First Circuit, was asked to interpret a contract of indemnity that included a provision for 

unconditional indemnity, but which did not expressly include liability for the indemnitee's own 

negligence or fault. Importantly, the Court, in addition to reviewing Louisiana's rules for 

interpreting contracts ofindemnity that include liability for the indemnitee's own negligence or fault, 

explains in great detail what the Supreme Court ofLouisiana meant in the Perkins case, when it held 

that the phrase "arising out of' requires a "connexity" similar to that required for "cause-in-fact" and 
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the facts that must be present for a court to apply such an approach-that is, that the approach taken 

in Perkins does not apply where there is a dispute as to the nature of the work upon which the right 

to indemnity is based.

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